
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

  BACACG 
MEETING MINUTES 

Location: BAC HQ | 11 The Circuit, Brisbane Airport 

Date:  Tuesday 26 March 2024  

Chair Nigel Chamier AM 

Attendees Nigel Chamier (Chair) 

Daniel Ryan (Community representative for Federal Seat of Lilley) 

Chris Kang (Community representative for State Seat of Clayfield) 

Tim Roskams (Community representative for Federal Seat of Brisbane) 

Daryl Wilson (Community representative for Federal Seat of Bonner) 

Karilyn Beiers (Community representative for Federal Seat of Bowman) 

Dr. Sean Foley (Community representative for Federal Seat of Griffith) 

Megan Thomas (Federal Department of Infrastructure, Transport, Regional 
Development, Communications and the Arts) 

Grace Jones (Federal Department of Infrastructure, Transport, Regional Development, 
Communications and the Arts) 

Andy Bauer (Virgin Australia) 

Brendan Mead (Qantas) 

Marion Lawie (AA) 

Sian Balogh (BAC) 

Portia Allison (BAC) 

Dallas Heseltine (BAC) 

 

Attendees 
(online) 

Professor Laurie Buys (Community representative for Federal Seat of Moreton) 

Michael Hawkins (Community representative for Federal Seat of Dickson) 

Joshua Kindred (Community representative for Federal Seat of Petrie) 

Russell McArthur (AA) 

Dana Bradbury (Qantas) 

Scott Mitchell (Virgin Australia) 

 

Guests and 
Observers  

Rishi Wijesoma (BAC) 

Paul Laws (BAC) 

Lauren Kelly (BAC) 

Apologies  Donna Marshall (AA) 

Belinda Fenner (ANO),  

Rachel Crowley (BAC) 

Caroline Hauxwell (Community representative for Federal Seat of Ryan) 

James Heading (BCC), Cassandra Sun (BCC), James Heading (BCC), 
Daniel Fisher (AA), Glenn Cox (AA) 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

AGENDA ITEMS 

10:00 am 

Chair: 

Welcome and Acknowledgement of Country. 

Confirmed the minutes for the last BACACG meeting on the 28th November 2023. 

Noted that the actions from previous meeting would be addressed by Airservices in their presentation. 

Chair update: 

• Proposed alternative meeting structure for June 2024 meeting to include tour of Brisbane 

Airport.  

BACACG Secretary Update: 

Sian Balogh (SB), Community Engagement Manager at BAC and BACACG Secretary, provided an 
update of incoming and outgoing correspondence to the BACACG email inbox and incoming aircraft 
noise feedback.  

SB advised that there were no remaining outstanding action for BAC, actions from previous meetings 
have been completed before the March 2024 meeting.  

BAC Update | Passenger + Community:  

Dallas Heseltine (DH) provided an update on new airlines and routes that have recently been 

announced at BAC, including: 

• Singapore Airlines: increasing services from 21 per week to 25. 

• American Airlines: new airline to BNE, commencing daily seasonal service to Dallas from October 

2024. 

• Delata Airlines: new airline to BNE, commencing seasonal 3 services per week to Los Angels from 

December 2024. 

• Jetstar: increasing services to Auckland with more capacity with A321neo from April 2024 

• Emirates: increasing capacity to Dubai with A380 on second daily service from October 2024 

• Qantas: increasing capacity to Wellington and Apia from October 2024 

DH provided an update on passenger numbers since the previous BACACG meeting. Advised 

significant increase in February due to Taylor Swift and P!NK concerts in Sydney and Melbourne. 

Passenger numbers are continuing to increase but have not yet returned to pre-COVID levels.  

SB provided an update on the community engagement activities undertaken by BAC since the last 

BACACG meeting. Including: 

• Attendance with the Brisbane Airport Mobile Information Van at Suncorp Stadium and Aviation 

High School  

• Networking and Celebratory event for International Women’s Day including attendance from 300 

‘BNE’ based women and 50 school students.  

• 2023 Lost Property Auction raised $80,000 for the Courier Mail Children’s Fund  

• Giving Globes raised $45,000, including $20,000 to the JT Academy  

• Containers for Change (YTD) raised $17,000 for Bulimba Creek Catchment Coordinating 

Committee 

• 2024 Community Giving Fund Program had a record number of applicants (728) with 24 successful 

recipients sharing in $80,000.  



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

SB provided an update on feedback received by the Community Engagement Team which included 332 

submissions, excluding aircraft noise. 36 submissions were compliments for BAC staff, Airport 

Ambassadors, and airline partners.  

Dallas Heseltine (DH), Airspace Implementation Manager, provided information on an upcoming project 

on the Legacy Runway including the A9 and A1 taxi ways. DH advised that as a part of the normal life 

cycle of the runway concrete slabs need to be replaced. Between June and September 2024, the 

Legacy Runway will have 18 shattered concrete slabs replaced and other parts of the runway and 

taxiways mended. DH advised that during this program of work the Legacy Runway will not be closed 

but will operate with displaced thresholds due to the runway needing to be temporarily shortened.  

DH advised that during the works, due to the shortened length of the Legacy Runway, all wide-body 

aircraft will be required to use New Parallel Runway (NPR). DH advised that turboprop and medium jet 

aircraft will still use the Legacy Runway. DH advised that due to the requirement for wide-body aircraft 

to use the NPR, some aircraft may be required to use flight paths over the city at night.  

SB advised that that an extensive communications and community engagement plan will start in the 

weeks after the March BACACG meeting to make the public aware of the changes. SB advised that the 

promotional campaign includes advertisements, social media campaigns, updates to the BNE website, 

use of the Mobile Information Van, and more depending on the response and need from the community. 

Questions: 

• The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Brisbane asked if new flights from 

American Airlines, Delta Airlines, and Singapore Airlines would be operating during the daytime or 

nighttime. DH responded that they are scheduled outside the 10pm – 6am Noise Abatement 

Procedure time.  

• The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Brisbane asked if the upcoming works on 

the Legacy Runway would decrease the regular maintenance/repairs on the Legacy Runway. DH 

advised that the upcoming Legacy Runway works would not change the need for regular 

maintenance as the high use of the slabs require normal maintenance similar to that of a major 

road. DH advised that regular maintenance, where possible, is scheduled during off-peak periods 

to lessen the impact to operations and the community.  

• The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Griffith questioned what BAC is doing about 

the increase in noise as a result of more services and airlines, and if BAC is encouraging the 

growth. DH advised that the demand for more services comes from the population growth in 

Brisbane and that as the city continues to grow more flights are expected. DH advised that while 

there is growth and a demand for more flights, BAC is working with the Department of 

Infrastructure, Airservices Australia (AA), and the airlines to manage the impact – including the use 

of quieter aircraft, for example, the use of A321neos by Jetstar.  

• Andy Bauer (AB), Virgin Australia, and Brendan Mead (BM), Qantas, also advised that the use of 

larger aircraft instead of putting on more aircraft is good news for the community, including 

Emirates using a second A380 for their second daily service to Dubai which is a quieter aircraft that 

the 777 currently in use and has more capacity.  

Department of Infrastructure, Transport, Regional Development, Communications and the Arts 

update 

Megan Thomas (MT), from the Department of Infrastructure, provided an update: 

• MT advised that Tim Boyle (TB), Brisbane Airport Program Manager Future Airspace Strategy 

Lead, presented at the most recent Brisbane Airport Airspace Advisory Board (AAB) on the Legacy 

Runway works. 

• The fourth AAB meeting was held at the beginning of march and included presentations on matters 

of interest from Community Members. MT advised that AA provided an update on the next phase of 

the Noise Action Plane for Brisban (NAPB) and the operation of SODPROPS at Brisbane Airport.  

• MT advised that the next AAB meeting is scheduled for July and minutes for the March meeting 

would be available online.  



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

• MT advised that the Department is working through the Aviation White Paper and advised that the 

Department received approx. 2,000 submissions from community members and industry 

representatives. MT advised that the White Paper is expected to be completed and released 

around the middle of 2024. 

• MT advised that the Department is currently working through the outstanding questions submitted 

by the Community Representative for the Federal of Brisbane and will endeavour to respond as 

soon as the answers are available.  

Questions:  

• The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Brisbane questions whether the Aviation 

White Paper would be significantly different to the Aviation Green Paper due to the volume of 

submissions. MT advised that the White Paper will be different and more specific on the 

determined policy for the future of aviation.  

Airservices Australia update 

Marion Lawie (ML), Airservices Australia, provide an update on the Noise Complaint and Information 

(NCIS), and Noise Action Plane for Brisbane and addressed actions from previous meetings (included 

in the Action Items below).  

ML reminded the group about AA’s Aircraft in Your Neighbourhood program and that the system 

requires a location for accurate information. Location can be general and anonymous. ML advised that 

the February data is available on the platform. ML advised the have updated their complaint reporting 

and are now reporting on both complainants (individuals) and complaints (number of contacts).  

ML provided an update on complaints data and advised a spike in contact during January due to severe 

weather over the New Year holidays. ML advised that due to the severe weather different operations 

were used and unusual movements were used to combat weather.  

ML advised that AA that the WebTrak tool on the AA website shows planned works, weather monitors, 

and noise monitors. ML advised that AA is working to include operation modes and explanations in a 

future model of the WebTrak program.  

ML advised that AA has received the request from the Community Representative for the Federal Seat 

of Bonner to update the WebTrak tool to include historic data. ML advised that AA is looking into making 

this possible and is working towards including historic data on the program.  

ML advised that the WebTrak tool now has a noise monitor available for Wynnum West and AA are 

working towards one at Hawthorn across the river from one located near the Brisbane Powerhouse.  

ML advised that AA has updated the Baseline Model to include date from 2023 and is working to 

including historical data. The program is still being amended with different filers and AA is considering 

how often the data is update (i.e., further update in 2024).  

ML advised an update on the NAPB including that AA has assessed the Phase 2 option feedback and 

will be presenting it to AAB. A report will be released in the following weeks and will be open for 

feedback. ML advised that Phase 1 was released last year in November and the data is being reviewed. 

Some feedback was taken on board and version 2 of Phase 1 will be release for with responses to 

common questions.  

ML advised that the NAPB will be looking at next phase of options in May/June 2024 with some options 

progressing from Phase 1. Including, introducing the methodology from TRAX who will be delivering 

packages 3 & 4. ML advised feedback from the community and industry will be continued with TRAX.  

Actions:  

• ML advised that AA has responded via email to the Community Representative for the Federal 

Seat of Ryan’s request for raw data from noise monitors and has advised that it is not currently 

available. ML advised they are working on how to help access the information that the community 

wants.  



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

• ML responded to the Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Ryan’s question about 

why Brookfield wasn’t included in the Phase 3 NAPB communications. ML advised that Brookfield 

wasn’t included on the impact list as there wasn’t any proposed changes to the flight paths that 

went over Brookfield in the Phase 3 options.  

• ML responded to the Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Ryan’s question about the 

process for validating the data used in noise modelling and validating data collected from the noise 

monitors. ML advised that this information was provided in the previous Post Implementation 

Review (PIR) which is available online and will be circulated to BACACG members.  

• ML responded to the Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Bonner’s question about 

updating WebTrak with historic data to show operations prior to the opening of the NPR. ML 

advised that AA is continuing to work on this request.  

• ML responded to the Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Brisbane’s questions (see 

previous action items). Responses to the representative’s questions are to be included in the 

meeting minutes (Appendix 1).  

Questions:  

• The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Brisbane questioned whether AA’s 

Baseline Model was still using the 750m x 750m boxes for the flight path information. ML advised 

that the model is still using the boxes.  

• The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Brisbane questioned if the WebTrak tool 

was going to be made live. ML advised that the WebTrak tool had been taken from a 45min delay 

to a 15min delay and that the delay is due to the amount of information that needs to be processed. 

Including the noise monitors, that requires time for the data to be accurate on the noise of aircraft 

not the noise of birds, cars, etc. ML advised that the program also needs to remove military and law 

enforcement aircraft from the display which also takes time.  

• The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Brisbane questioned whether there is a 

LMax type map for the whole of Brisbane (i.e., a static map for Brisbane that shows the effect of 

noise). ML advised that there it is not an action within the NAPB and that the ANEF contours 

provide this information. DH advised that ‘N-above’ contours are completed as a part of Master 

Planning and ANEF contours are reported every 5 years to the Department. The representative 

requested AA for a ‘N-above’ map across the whole of Brisbane. ML advised the request would be 

noted.  

Domestic Terminal – Parking (P2 Expansion) 

Paul Laws (PL), Head of Parking, and Lauren Kelly (LK), Communications Manager, provided an 

update to the BACACG on the development of a new multistorey parking lot at the Domestic Terminal.  

PL and LK advised that the P2 Expansion will be located in between the current multistorey parking and 

the hotels, where the 30min free and oversized parking is currently located. The 30min free waiting area 

will be removed, with the ParkShort product having 30min free instead. The P2 Expansion will include 

an additional 1,700 parking bays. PL and LK advised that oversized vehicles will now be directed to the 

AirPark facilities for parking.  

Questions:  

• The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Bowman asked if the signage about height 

limits for vehicles are going to be made more prominent before entry to the carpark, so people 

don’t get stuck. PL advised that the feedback will be considered, and wayfinding requires ongoing 

improvement.  

• The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Nudgee asked what the plans were for bike 

storage. PL advised that the expansion will include storage for active transport users, including 

secure storage for bikes.   

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

Presentation from the Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Griffith 

The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Griffith presented to the BACACG group on their 

report on Aviation Noise Pollution, Public Health, and Wellbeing.  

Slides from the presentation are included in Appendix 2.  

A copy of the representative’s report can be found in the BACACG Meeting Minutes September 2023. 

Community Representative General Business and Discussion  

 In General Business, the following items were discussed: 

• Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Petrie:  

Questioned why BACACG was dealing with aircraft noise matters when aircraft noise falls under 

the remit of the AAB. Advised that aircraft noise was being double handled and that AAB 

should provide a report on aircraft noise related matters to BACACG. Advised that BACACG 

should move to discuss other issues facing the airport.  

• Community Representative for the State Seat of Clayfield:  

Provided an update on the Pinkenba community and concerns to be raised. Advised that Pinkenba 

had brought up concerns about the drains around the airport and would like further information 

on the impact that future development on the precinct will have on the drainage systems.  

Rishi Wijesoma (RW), Government Policy Lead, advised that BAC works closely with the Port of 

Brisbane, the Queensland Government, and the Brisbane City Council on solutions for the 

roads and amenities around Brisbane Airport and the Port of Brisbane. RW advised that BAC 

would reach out to the Pinkenba Group with information once received by the Queensland 

Minister for Tourism.  

The representative advised that the Pinkenba Community Association is focusing on airport 

infrastructure first before engaging with aircraft noise concerns as the numerous issues are 

making it difficult for the group to engage properly and provide feedback on solutions.  

• Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Brisbane:  

The representative advised that their questions have been tabled and responses will be provided in 

writing (Appendix 3).  

The representative questioned what the total number of flight path impacted residences there are in 

Brisbane (below 7,000ft) and whether there has been an increase/decrease in residential 

overfly. ML advised that the answer is in tabled response to previous questions (Appendix 1). 

ML advised that the volume of aircraft is increasing but there is not information no whether the 

same residential areas are being impact or different ones. The representative questioned if 

there is information on the use of SODPROPS. ML advised to take the question on notice.  

• Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Bonner:  

The representative asked if there were any timelines for the upload of historic data to WebTrak. ML 

advised there is no current timeline.  

• Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Lilley:  

The representative advised that there was an increase in comments on the community pages 

within Lilley about aircraft noise in January and February. The representative advised that 

complaints received to the Lilley Officer have been referred to AA. The representative 

requested that weather information should be included on AA and BAC websites to assist the 

community in understanding why flight paths and operations may have changes.  

The representative advised that BACACG should focus on infrastructure and changes happening 

at the airport precinct and have less aircraft noise discussions.  

• Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Bowman:  



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

The representative advised that they will be submitting questions to AA for response.  

The representative stated that the information provided by BAC prior to 2020 does not show the 

effect of aircraft noise or the effect of SODPROPS for the Redland Bay Area. The 

representative advised that SODPROPS may be beneficial for the Brisbane region but not for 

the Redlands. The representative stated that SODPROPS is used to convince Brisbane 

residents that the noise is going away, but it only increases noise for the Redlands.  

The representative reaffirmed request for language associated with operations to be ‘over the bay’ 

and ‘over the ocean’ instead of ‘over the water’. ML advised that the use of ‘over the ocean’ is 

not available as there is a difference between ‘over the bay’ and ‘over the water’ that 

differentiates the mode or type of operation. ML advised that the reason aircraft are continuing 

‘over the bay’ is to allow for as much possible time for the aircraft to climb higher before 

heading back over land.  

The representative advised that SODPROPS will only be effective if the aircraft go out over the 

ocean and not over the bay.  

The representative questioned what TRAX is doing for AA and what their contract stipulates. ML 

advised that there is a factsheet on the AA website about what TRAX is engaged to do.  

The representative questioned whether there was a voluntary 7 knot tailwind speed and if pilots 

were electing to take it. BM advised that different aircraft and different pilots decide at the time 

of flight if it is safe to take the voluntary tailwind. 

• The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Griffith: 

The representative advised that in his presentation there is a map of the Southeast Queensland 

airspace that shows flights under 3,000ft and that there are a lot of Brisbane suburbs affected 

by flights under 3,000ft. BM advised that the map shows all aircraft not just aircraft originating 

or flying to Brisbane Airport – map includes Amberley, Archerfield, Sunshine Coast, and Gold 

Coast.  

General Business 

The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Brisbane questioned if there were any plans for 

AA to complete research into the impact of aircraft noise, particularly a cost/benefit analysis. The 

representative also questioned whether the Department was completing studies as a part of the 

Whitepaper. ML advised that the response to the question is included in the tabled response to the 

representative’s questions. MT advised that similar requests have been brought up in the AAB and the 

AAB are working with AA, BAC and the Department on options. The Community Representative for the 

Federal Seat of Griffith commented that there are studies being done in Europe on the health impact of 

aircraft noise. MT advised that the AAB are not noise or health experts and are a transport forum, MT 

advised that the AAB is looking at high-level measures for aircraft noise. The Community 

Representative for the Federal Seat of Griffith questioned if BAC was completing research. The 

Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Bonner commented that it is not the responsibility of 

the airport as BAC is not responsible for all aircraft noise, the representative commented that it is the 

responsibility of the government.  

The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Lilley commented that when buildings are built 

next to highways there are building codes that require measures to mitigate noise and if the same is 

happening for buildings being built under flight paths. RW advised that BAC cannot compel the Council 

or State Government to change building codes, but BAC has submitted feedback on the need for noise 

mitigation in new buildings through the Greenpaper.  

Close Meeting | Final Comments from Chair 

Meeting closed at 12pm.  

The Chair notes that information on the next meeting will be released in advance of the next meeting 

date.   

The Chair invited informal discussion and welcomed guests to stay after the meeting.  



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

Next meeting 25 June 2024 – Action items below carried forward to next meeting. 

 

Action Items Owner(s) Deadline Status 

Noise monitor raw data:  AA is continuing discussions with 
the AAB on how to approach raw noise data, and an update 
will be provided at next meeting. 

AA Ongoing In 
progress 

BAC would reach out to the Pinkenba Group with information 
once received by the Queensland Minister for Tourism 
regarding solutions for the roads and amenities around 
Brisbane Airport and the Port of Brisbane.  

 

BAC Next 
meeting 

Complete 

Community representative for the Federal Seat for Brisbane 
requested for the Department of Infrastructure, Transport, 
Regional Development, Communications and the Arts to 
respond to his ‘infrastructure petition’.   

Department 
Infrastructure, 
Transport, 
Regional 
Development, 
Communicatio
ns and the 
Arts 

Ongoing In 
progress 

BAC to present at upcoming Pinkenba Community Association 

meeting 

BAC  Complete 

Questions put forward by Community representative for Federal 

Seat of Brisbane (appendix 3) 

AA / BAC Next 
meeting 

Complete 

Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Brisbane 

questioned if there is information on the use of SODPROPS.  

AA Next 
meeting 

Complete 

 
  



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

APPENDICES 

Appendix 1.  

Airservices answers to questions from Community Representative from Federal Seat of Brisbane 

 

  

  



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

  



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

  



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

  



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

Appendix 2. 

Presentation from Community Representative from Federal Seat of Griffith 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 

  



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 

  



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

Appendix 3 

Questions tabled at March meeting from representative from Federal Seat of Brisbane 

 

 

  



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 


